
  

 CITY OF CLAREMONT  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Regular Meeting  
April 6, 2015 

7:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chambers 

 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

  
4. MAYOR’S REPORT  
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA    

A. Regular Meeting Minutes –March 2, 2015  
B. Closed Session Minutes- March 2, 2015 
C. Municipal Mowing Agreement with NC DOT 
D. Amended Audit Contract 

 
6. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 

 
7. PRESENTATION 

A. 2014 Annual Audit, Melanie Starr    
 
8. OLD BUSINESS 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
     A. Ordinance 19-14 Amend the Code of Ordinances Title 4 & 5 
     B. Ordinance 20-14 Amending the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget 
     C. Resolution 20-14 Adopting the Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan  
     D. Resolution 21-14 Designating an Official to Make Recommendations to the NC ABC     
 Commission 

 
10. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Department Dashboard Report  
 
11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

 
12. CLOSED SESSION 

A.  Potential Economic Development - G.S. 143-318.11 (4) 
 

13. ADJOURN  



 
  

           Item # 5 A, B, C 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for Council Action 
    
 

To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Catherine Renbarger, City Manager 
 
 
 
Action Requested: Consent Agenda 
 
A. Regular Session Minutes- March 2, 2015 
B. Closed Session Minutes- March 2, 2015 
C. Municipal Mowing Agreement with NC DOT 
D. Amended Audit Contract-  Due to prior period adjustments, not included in scope of services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendations: Approve as presented 



  Item # 5A 

Monday, March 2, 2015                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 1 of 4 

 

City of Claremont Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, March 2, 2015 

 
The regular City Council meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the council chambers located at 
Claremont City Hall at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, March 2, 2015. 
 
The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor Shawn Brown, 
Councilmember Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember Dayne Miller, Councilmember Nicky Setzer, 
Councilmember Dale Setzer and  Councilmember Dale Sherrill. 
 
The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Manager Catherine Renbarger, 
City Attorney Bob Grant, Finance Officer Stephanie Corn, City Clerk Wendy Helms, Rick Damron, 
Lieutenant Allen Long, Melinda Bumgarner, Police Chief Gary Bost, Public Works Director Tom 
Winkler and Recreation Coordinator Michael Orders. 
 
Others in attendance were: Robert Smith, Zack Gardner, Lisa Travis, Robert Winrow, Summer Jenkins, 
Kim Bolick, Jeff Swagger, Andrea Ramsey and Gene Monday. 
  
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Shawn R. Brown called the Claremont City Council meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as presented. 
 
 
3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The invocation was given by Reverend Gary Haddock from St. Mark’s Lutheran Church.  
 
 
4. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Brown spoke briefly about his plans to attend the National League of Cities Conference in 
Washington D.C.   
 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. February 2, 2015, Regular Meeting Minutes – Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion 



  Item # 5A 

Monday, March 2, 2015                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 2 of 4 

to accept February 2, 2015 regular meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember Dayne Miller 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
B.  February 2, 2015 Closed Session Minutes- Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion to 
accept February 2, 2015 closed session minutes. Councilmember Dayne Miller seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously.   
 
C.  Resolution 18-14 Adopt the 2015 Action Plan- Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion 
to accept Resolution 18-14, to adopt the 2015 Action Plan. Councilmember Dayne Miller seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
D.  Municipal Retention Schedule Amendment to Standard 9 & 12- Councilmember Timothy 
Lowrance made a motion to accept Amendments to the Retention Schedule; Schedule 9 and 12. 
Councilmember Dayne Miller seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
E.  Municipal Retention Schedule Amendment to Standard 4 & 12- Councilmember Timothy 
Lowrance made a motion to accept Amendments to the Retention Schedule; Schedule 4 and 12. 
Councilmember Dayne Miller seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
6. CITIZEN’S CONCERN’S & COMMENTS- none 
 
 
7. PROCLAMATION 
 
 A. National Nutrition Month- Mayor Brown recognized Summer Jenkins from The Corner Table.  Ms. 
Jenkins spoke about a local movement “Give Healthy”.  This movement has been launched to encourage 
the donation of foods filled with the nutrients adults and children need for healthy living in partnership 
with Eastern Catawba Cooperative Christian Ministries; Greater Hickory Cooperative Christian 
Ministries; Hickory Soup Kitchen; and the Corner Table. 
 
Mayor Brown read excerpts from the proclamation.  Motion was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer 
to approve the Proclamation designating March as National Nutrition Month.  Second was made by 
Councilmember D.B. Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
8. OLD BUSINESS-  
 
A.  Budget Transfer- A budget transfer was presented to Council for informational purposes only.  This 
budget transfer was made to account for additional legal fees. 
 
 
9.  NEW BUSINESS-  
 
A. Ordinance 18-14 Budget Amendment – Ordinance 18-14 is a budget amendment that reflects funds 
that were reimbursed to the City as part of a Department of Public Safety Grant, for cameras at Bunker 
Hill High School.  Motion was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer to accept Ordinance 18-14 as 
presented.  Second was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
10. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 



  Item # 5A 

Monday, March 2, 2015                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 3 of 4 

A.  Youth Council- Zack Gardner spoke on behalf of the Youth Council.  He gave a summary of events 
they plan to host.  The 5th annual Easter egg hunt will be held in the City Park on March 28th.  The 
Youth Council is in the planning stages of developing a Color Run, tentatively scheduled for June 6th.  
The Youth Council would also like to place boxes in local businesses to take donations of food for the 
local food banks.  The next meeting of the Youth Council will be held April 11th.   
 
B.  Monthly Department Dashboard Report- The monthly dashboard report was presented.  Chief Bost 
spoke to Council about the recent audit performed by the State of North Carolina.  Public Works 
Director, Tom Winkler informed Council the construction of a waterline on Kelly Blvd has begun.   
 
C. Recreation Committee- Recreational Coordinator, Michael Orders informed Council that the current 
slab at the Veteran’s Memorial was full.  They have established a wait list for new names to be added. 
 
 
11. CITY MANAGER REPORT   
 
City Manager Catherine Renbarger gave Council a brief overview of several subjects.   

 Gave updates on process and repairs were given regarding the Waste Water Treatment Plant. 
 Claremont Elementary /Summer Reading will take place in the Council chambers the summer of 

2015. 
 Currently there are two vacancies at Public Works; interviews will begin the week of March 4th. 
 Department of Commerce has issued a grant in the amount of $240,000 for building updates at 

Prysmium.  The City will invest $12,000 for grant administration. 
 Rodeway Inn has paid their occupancy tax. 
 Council will hold their budget workshop on April 11th. 
 2014 audit will be wrapping up this week; final numbers should be available soon. 

 
12. CLOSED SESSION  
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Dale Sherrill to go into a closed session in reference to G.S. 143-
318.11(a) (4) at 7:22 p.m.  Second was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
13. ADJOURN 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to adjourn the meeting at 7:59 p.m.  Second 
was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 
       Attested: 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Shawn R. Brown, Mayor     Wendy Helms, City Clerk   
 



  Item # 5A 

Monday, March 2, 2015                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 4 of 4 

 
 



























Year Ended June 30, 2014



The General Fund is the major operating fund for the City
of Claremont. It includes all revenues and expenditures
for the various city departments except for water and
sewer.

The General Fund also includes the assets, liabilities and
fund balances of the General Fund, Powell Bill Fund,
Police Seizure Fund and Radio Grant Fund.



The major revenue source for the General Fund is ad valorem
taxes collected by Catawba County and the State of North
Carolina on behalf of the City.

Additional sources of revenues includes:
 Local option sales taxes
 Other unrestricted revenues and taxes, including various 

other taxes levied by the State and local occupancy taxes
 Restricted revenues, such as grants with restrictions on use
 Other revenues includes permits and fees, sales and

services, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues.



2014 
Budget

2014
Actual Variance

Restated
2013 

Actual

Ad valorem taxes 1,720,462 1,752,654 32,012 1,719,123

Local option sales tax 220,100 244,634 24,534  228,620

Other taxes and 
licenses 9,200 849 -8,351 6,601

Unrestricted 
intergovernmental 313,578 468,087 154,509 482,848

Restricted 
intergovernmental 276,236 279,093 2,857 274,561

Permits and fees 2,000 1,120 -880 986

Sales and services 500 768 268 768

Investment earnings 2,000 519 -1,481 1,214

Miscellaneous 48,246  73,761  25,515  48,728  

Total revenues 2,592,502 2,821,485 228,983  2,763,449



Ad Valorem Tax
61.2%

Restricted 
intergovernmental

10.3%

Permits and Fees
0.0%

Local Option Sales 
Taxes
8.5%

Other taxes and 
licenses

0.5%

Miscellaneous
0.9%

Unrestricted 
intergovernmental

18.5%
Sales and services

0.0%

Investment earnings
0.1%

General Fund Revenues



The expenditures for the General Fund includes the operating 
expenditures for all City departments, excluding the Water and 
Sewer Funds, the PJ Scholarship Fund, Economic 
Development Fund, and the General Capital Projects Fund.
Expenditures includes all department costs such as
 Salaries and related benefits
 Supplies and materials
 Contracted services
 Travel and training
 Repairs and maintenance
 Capital Outlay (as needed)
 Debt Service



2014 Budget 2014 Actual 2014 Variance Restated
2013 Actual

General Government 598,086 586,725 11,361 480,555

Public Safety 1,187,167 1,112,675 74,492 1,429,560

Environmental
Protection 573,484 535,657 37,827 572,552

Economic
Development 29,150 29,150 0 27,329

Transportation 43,000 7,854 35,146 164,284

Cultural and 
Recreation 104,628 103,635 1,005 93,796

Debt Service 147,520 146,560 960 147,520

Total
Expenditures 2,703,335 2,542,544 160,791 2,915,596



General Government 
- Administration

15.0%

General Governement-Governing 
Body
3.7%

Public Safety-Police
31.5%

Economic 
Development

1.1%

Public Safety-Fire
12.3%

Environmental Protection-
Public Works

21.1%

Transportation
0.3%

Cultural and 
Recreation-Library

0.8%
Debt Service

5.8%

Cultural and 
Recreation-
Recreation

4.1%

General Fund Expenditures



2014
Budget

2014 
Actual

2014
Variance

Restated
2013 

Actual
Total Revenues 2,592,502 2,821,485 228,983 2,763,449

Total Expenditures 2,703,335 2,542,544 160,791 2,915,596

Excess of Revenues 
over (under) 
Expenditures -110,833 278,941 389,774 -152,147
Other financing 
sources(uses) 110,833 24,129 -86,704 3,993
Change in Fund
Balance 0 303,070 303,070 -148,154

Beginning Fund 
Balance

Prior Period 
Adjustment

1,756,558

84,166

1,988,878

0

Ending Fund 
Balance 2,143,794 1,840,724



The ending fund balance reported in the General Fund at June
30, 2013 was $1,756,558. However, prior period adjustments
were needed to restated the 2013 ending balance to
$1,840,724.

Of this fund balance, $326,249 is restricted fund balance,
which is not available for appropriation in the budget.
Restated restricted amounts includes public safety at $2,525,
streets $6,304 and stabilization for state statute of $205,391.

In the 2014 FY budget, $48,000 is budgeted as designated for
subsequent’s years budget and this amounts is reported as
assigned fund balance.

Total restated unassigned fund balance was $1,840,724.



The ending fund balance reported in the General Fund at June 30,
2014 was $2,143,794. However, prior period adjustments were
needed to restated the 2013 ending balance to $1,840,724.

Of this fund balance, $326,249 is restricted fund balance, which is
not available for appropriation in the budget. Restated restricted
amounts includes public safety at $3,026, streets at $43,532,
economic development at $5,000 and stabilization for state statute
of $218,492.

In the 2015 FY budget, $56,536 is budgeted as designated for
subsequent’s years budget and this amounts is reported as assigned
fund balance.

Total unassigned fund balance was $1,817,208 at June 30, 2014.



The Water and Sewer Fund is operated as an Enterprise
Fund because the purpose of this fund to account for
services in which a charge is made to cover the cost of
services. This is similar to operation of a regular
business. Currently, the following funds are combined to
make up the Water and Sewer Fund:

Water and Sewer Operations
Water and Sewer Capital Reserve



These funds are budgeted on a modified accrual basis, but
is required to reported the full accrual basis of accounting
for financial statement purposes.
The major differences in modified accrual basis and full
accrual basis accounting include the following
adjustments:
 Capital outlay items over $5,000 are treated as assets,

not as expenditures
 Depreciation expense is reported as an expense
 Debt services principal payments are treated as

reduction of debt balances, not as expenditures
 Accrued interest at year end on loans is recorded as

additional expenditures



Therefore in years where major construction costs are
incurred, paid with grant funds and assets capitalized, the
fund may show a higher than normal net income on the
full accrual basis due to capitalization of the construction
costs. Year to year comparison may vary substantially
from year to year.



2014 Restated
2013

Operating Revenues $        1,165,780 $          888,116

Operating Expenditures    
(excluding depreciation) 1,112,707 623,092

Depreciation 244,291 203,015

Operating income(loss) -,191,218 62,009

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) -4,128 -42,081

Change in Fund Balance -195,346 19,928

Beginning Net Position
Prior Period Adjustment
Beginning Net Position , Restated

5,855,440
-85,636

5,769,805

5,659,592

Ending Net Assets 5,574,459 5,679,520



The City of Claremont’s 2014 audit report reflects activity
only the following Capital Projects:

General Capital Project Fund - This fund is a basically a
reserve fund established for build up reserves for future
capital needs. This fund only had activity of investment
income in 2014. No amounts were transferred in or out.



During fiscal year 2014, the City of Claremont purchased
a fire truck chassis for use by the fire department. This
truck is currently being upfitted with the new equipment.
Plans for this purchase has originally including borrowing
for this truck for the installation of the specialized fire
equipment.



Despite the current and future negative impacts noted to
the fund balance of the General Fund, the City remains
very healthy. The Local Government Commission
suggest that governmental units maintain an unassigned
fund balance of 8% to 12% of general fund expenditures.
As of June 30, 2014, the unassigned fund balance was
$1,817,208, which represents 71.49% of total general
fund expenditures. The total fund balance of $2,143,794
represents 84.31% of total general fund expenditures.

With insightful planning for future capital needs, the City
is poised to maintain a very positive financial position.



    Item # 9A 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for Council Action 
 
 

To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Catherine Renbarger, City Manager 
 
 
 
Action Requested: Consider for Adoption 
Ordinance 19-14 
 
A. Ordinance 4-2-5Containers required. 
 This will update the ordinance to reflect that the City or City’s contractor now provides 
 garbage containers. 
 
B. Ordinance 4-2-11Business, commercial, multi-family group housing developments 
 This change updates the ordinance to allow up to two solid waste containers at small 
 commercial businesses. 
 
C. Ordinance 5-1-88 Collection of service charges; penalties. 
 Removal of the exact charges for nonpayment of water and sewer bills will allow for 
 future adjustments without changes to the ordinance. 
 
D.  Ordinance 5-1-89 Deposits required. 
 Removal of the exact dollar amount will allow for future adjustments without change to 
 the ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve as presented 



 

 

                          Item #9A  

CITY OF CLAREMONT 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
ORDINANCE #19-14 

___________________________________________________________________ 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT 

 
TITLE 4 PUBLIC WORKS & 

 
TITLE 5 MUNICIPAL UTILITES 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Council of the City of Claremont to continually update and revise the 
Claremont Code of Ordinances in accordance with the needs of the citizens of the City of Claremont. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CLAREMONT CITY COUNCIL THAT,  
 
That Title 4 Section 2-5 and 2-11 along with Title 5 Sections 1-88 and 1-89, are hereby amended by changing 
the following: 
 
  
Sec. 4-2-5 Containers required. 
 The occupant of every building or premises where garbage and refuse does or may exist shall provide 
containers made of substantial galvanized, iron, plastic, rubber or other non-rusting material in which shall be 
deposited all garbage and refuse existing at such building or premises. Each container shall be provided with 
handles or bails and with a tight fitting cover made of the same material as the container. All containers for 
collection by the city shall be watertight and they shall be of a size that can be conveniently handled by the 
collectors, and no container shall be more than provided by the city or their contractor. 32 gallons in capacity. 
All containers shall be kept in a reasonably clean condition. Containers shall be placed at the curbside or edge 
of the driveway no later than 6:00 a.m. on the regular garbage service day. These containers shall also be 
removed from the curbside and or driveway and stored out of sight from the right-of-way no later than 10:00 
a.m. on the day following the collection. If containers are not removed from the curb, the property owner is 
subject to the provisions and penalties in section 1-1-6(c) of this code. 
(Ord. of 11/1/10, No. 15-10) 
 
Sec. 4-2-11 Business, commercial, multi-family group housing developments. 
 (a) Solid waste collection at small commercial businesses shall be limited to six (6) two(2) 
containers 32 gallon cans or bags per collection. Small commercial businesses exceeding those limitations shall 
be required to utilize a container service and shall be responsible for 100% of the cost. 
  
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (b) Solid waste collection at multi-family group housing developments shall be limited to those of 
seven (7) units or less. Group housing developments exceeding those limitations shall be required to utilize a 
container service and shall be responsible for 100% of the cost. (Ord. of 7/11/88, No. 120-88) 
 
 
 
Sec. 5-1-88 Collection of service charges; penalties. 
 (a) Water and sewer service charges are payable monthly and are due on the day following the day 
the bill is mailed. 
 (b) A charge for nonpayment of water and sewer bills will be found in the current fee schedule in the 
amount of $10 shall be due and payable on the 26th day after the billing date. 
 (c) Water and sewer service to a customer may be discontinued in the event of nonpayment on or 
after the 26th day after the billing date. Service shall not be resumed until payment of all current charges and 
penalties. As a condition or resumption of service, the customer may be required to make an advance cash 
deposit in an amount equal to twice the customer’s  monthly bill.  The deposit may be applied to the payment or 
future charges. Any funds remaining on deposit upon final termination of service to a customer shall be returned 
to him. 
 (d) In addition to the above fees, charges, deposit and penalties, the following charges shall be 
payable with respect to water service: 
 (1) When water service has been cut off, an additional charge of $15 shall be paid as a condition to 
of the resumption of service; provided, however, that if the a meter shall have been removed, the  an additional 
charge may apply shall be $125. 
 (2) If water service is turned on, without the same having been authorized or ordered by the city, 
after having been cut off, the meter may be removed. In such case, a penalty of $125 shall be payable as a 
condition of the reinstallation of the meter or resumption of service. (Ord. of 4/5/77, Div. V, Art. 4; Ord. of 
8/7/06, No. 17-06) 
 (3) Any funds remaining on deposit upon final termination of service to a customer shall be returned to 
him. 
 
 
Sec. 5-1-89 Deposits required. 
 (a) At the time of request for water or sewer service, each residential customer not owning property 
for which the service is to be provided shall make a deposit in accordance with the current City Fee Schedule.  
in the amount of $100. Commercial customers shall make a $125 deposit and industrial customers shall make a 
$250 deposit. In the case of a customer making a deposit with respect to only one (1) service, no additional 
deposit shall be required upon subsequent request for the second service. After 90 days the deposit may be 
adjusted to reflect 30 days’ service. 
 (b) The deposit shall be retained by the City during such time as service is continued, and may be 
applied to payment of future charges; provided, however, that such application to payment shall have no effect 
upon the operation of the provisions of this chapter relating to nonpayment. If such application to payment is  
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
made, there shall thereupon be due and payable an amount sufficient to restore the funds on deposit to a total of 
$100 for residences, $125 for commercial and  $250 for industrial. Any funds remaining upon termination of 
service to a customer shall be returned to him. 
 (c) The deposit required by this section shall be in addition to all other charges, fees, and 
assessments referred to in this chapter. (Ord. of 4/5/77, Div. V, Art. 5; Ord. of 3/5/90, No. 157-90; Ord. of 
8/7/06, No. 17-06) 
 
 
Adopted this the 6th day of April, 2015. 
 
 
                                       _______________________ 
         Shawn Brown, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Wendy Helms, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________ 
Robert M. Grant, City Attorney  



    Item # 9B 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for Council Action 
 
 

To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Catherine Renbarger, City Manager 
 
 
 
Action Requested:   
 
Ordinance 20-14 Budget Amendment 
Reimbursement for an overpayment. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve as presented 



 
                        Item #9C  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for Council Action 
 
 

To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Catherine Renbarger, City Manager 
 
 
 
Action Requested: Consider for Adoption 
 
1. Resolution 20-14- Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
The Unifour Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee and AECOM, led by Catawba County, 
initiated a Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. Local governments in the Unifour 
contributed to the plan, based on assessed need for specific hazards and remedies. The plan 
includes Mitigation Actions specific to those local governments.  Adopting the Unifour 
Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan will allow the City to be eligible for federal and state 
assistance in the event that a state of disaster is declared. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Adopt Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 



 

 

                          Item # 9C  
CITY OF CLAREMONT  

NORTH CAROLINA 
 

RESOLUTION # 20-14 
 

 
 

A RESOULTION ADOPTING THE UNIFOUR REGIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION 
PLAN 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, the citizens and property within the City of Claremont are subject to the effects of natural hazards 
that pose threats to lives and cause damage to property, and with the knowledge and experience that certain 
areas of the county are particularly vulnerable to flood, tornado, winter storm/ice storm, drought, wildfire and 
geological hazards such as sink holes, landslides and earthquakes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to seek ways to mitigate the impact of identified hazard risks; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Part 6, Article 21 of Chapter 143; Parts 3, 5, 
and 8 of Article 19 of Chapter 160A; and Article 8 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes, 
delegated to local governmental units the responsibility to adopt regulations designed to promote the public 
health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Section 1 Part 166A of the North Carolina 
General Statutes (adopted in Session Law 2001-214 --- Senate Bill 300 effective July 1, 2001), states therein in 
Item (a) (2) “For a state of disaster proclaimed pursuant to G.S. 166A-6(a) after August 1, 2002, the eligible 
entity shall have a hazard mitigation plan approved pursuant to the Stafford Act”; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 322 of the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 states that local governments must 
develop an All-Hazards Mitigation Plan in order to be eligible to receive future Hazard Mitigation Grant 
Program Funds and other disaster-related assistance funding and that said Plan must be updated and adopted 
within a five year cycle; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Claremont has performed a comprehensive review and evaluation of each section of the 
previously approved Hazard Mitigation Plan and has updated  said plan as required under regulations at 44 CFR 
Part 201 and according to guidance issued by the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the North 
Carolina Division of Emergency Management; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council of the City of Claremont to fulfill this obligation in order that the 
City will be eligible for federal and state assistance in the event that a state of disaster is declared for a hazard 
event affecting the City. 
 
NOW, therefore, be it resolved that the City Council of the City of Claremont hereby:  
 
1.  Adopts the Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 
 
2.  Vests Planning & Zoning, Administration, Public Works, and Fire Departments with the responsibility, 
 authority, and the means to:  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(a) Inform all concerned parties of this action. 
(b) Cooperate with Federal, State and local agencies and private firms which undertake to study, 

survey, map and identify floodplain areas, and cooperate with neighboring communities with 
respect to management of adjoining floodplain areas in order to prevent exacerbation of existing 
hazard impacts. 

 
3.  Appoints the City Manager to assure that the Hazard Mitigation Plan is reviewed annually and every  five 
 years as specified in the Plan to assure that the Plan is in compliance with all State and Federal 
 regulations and that any needed revisions or amendments to the Plan are developed. 
 
4.  Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the objectives of the 
 Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
 
Adopted on this day, April 6, 2015. 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 
         Shawn R. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 
Certified by: ___________________________      SEAL:  
 
Date: ______________________________ 
 



 

 

                        Item # 9E 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for Council Action 
 
 

To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Catherine Renbarger, City Manager 
 
 
 
Action Requested:   
 
Resolution 21-14 Resolution designating an Official to Make Recommendations to 
the NC ABC Commission on ABC Permits 
 
This resolution would give the City Manager authority to make recommendations to 
the NC ABC Commission concerning ABC retail permits. 
 
At this time, City Council has delegated this authority to the Mayor.   
 
 
Recommendation: Approve as presented 



 

 

                        Item # 9B  

 
 
 
 

City Council of the City of Claremont  

Catawba County, North Carolina  

Ordinance No. 20-14 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT AMENDING CLAREMONT  
MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

General Fund  

Revenues     Increase  Decrease  
Miscellaneous Revenue 
10.3350.0000     $2,250  
     
Total       $2,250 
 
Expenditures  
Engineering 
30.8220.045                $2,250  
      
 
Total      $2,250 
  
INTRODUCED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  
April 6, 2015.  
ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  
April 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
 Shawn R. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
____________________________  
Wendy Helms, City Clerk  



 

 

                          Item # 9E  
CITY OF CLAREMONT  

NORTH CAROLINA 
 

RESOLUTION # 21-14 
 

 
 

A RESOULTION DESIGNATING AN OFFICIAL TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS 
TO THE NORTH CAROLINA ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL COMMISSION 

ON ABC PERMIT APPLICATIONS 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, G.S. 18B-904(f) authorizes a governing body to designate an official, by name or by 
position, to make recommendations concerning the suitability of persons or locations for ABC permits; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, THE City Of Claremont, County of Catawba, wishes to notify the NC ABC Commission 
of its designation as required by G.S. 18B-904(f); 
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby designated to notify the North 
Carolina Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission of the recommendations of the City of Claremont, 
County of Catawba, regarding the suitability of persons and locations for ABC permits within its 
jurisdiction.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT notices to the City of Claremont, County of Catawba, should be 
mailed or delivered to the official designated above at the following address: 
  Mailing Address: PO Box 446 
  Office Location: 3288 East Main Street 
  City: Claremont, NC  
  Zip: 28610 
  Telephone# (828) 466-7255 
 
 
This the 6th day of April, 2015 
 
__________________________ 
Shawn R. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 
Sworn to and subscribed before me this the 6th day of April, 2015 
 
___________________________ 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 
 



Month YTD Month YTD % In % Out 
866 2385 Calls for Service 31 86 87% 71%
133 417 Working Fires 4 12 68% 63%
69 217 Training Hours 521 1026
1 23 Prevention Programs 23 52
9 23 False Alarms 0 5 Month YTD 

Warrants 3 32 EMS Calls 12 20 Calls for Service 156
Open Cases 7 25 Training Hours 66
Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD 
Vehicles Serviced 6 27 Water Turned Off 5 31 Zoning Permits 7 17
Recycling %- Feb 2015 135% 90% Water Taps 0 4 Residential Permits 4 5
Solid Waste Tonnage 30.1 106.04 Water Purchased 6,805,010 20,684,390 Commercial  Permits 3 12
Street Lights Replaced 6 25 Water Sold 6,901,749 18,766,295 Enforcement Cases 3 9
Work Orders 43 102 McLin  WWTP Avg. 128,000 139,667 Planning Board Work 1 5
Sewer Line Jetted 1630+10 3,878 North WWTP Avg. 65,000 66,667 Safety Permits 0 0
Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Claremont March 2015 Dashboard Report 

Calls Answered 

Citations Served 
Warnings 

Number of Arrests 

 Police Dept. Fire Dept. Financials 

General Fund 

Water/Sewer Fund 

Capt. Long graduated from LEEP training at NC 
State University.Officers have begun their yearly 

mandated In-Service training. Building 
construction is complete and final inspection has 

Worked on site plan edits for solar project and 
site plan edits/subdivision reveiew for Oxford 
Crossings.  Worked with Markeyt Basket and 
Core 3 on business openings. Attended SOG 

Course.

No Update

Working with Sunquest on three sites.  Continued work on water line on Kelly Blvd. 817 AMR water 
meters have been installed.  New employee has been hired, and will start to work 4/8/15.

Rescue Squad 

Public Works Utility Dept. Planning & Zoning Dept.

Accidents 

Host for County Association meeting.  Safety Bowl 
participant (Finished 4th) and sponsor.  First site visit 
for new Engine 71.  Ten new dual band radios in 
service.


	AGENDA
	RCA Consent Agenda
	March 2, 2015 Regular
	Municipal Mowing Agreement
	2014 Amended Contract for the City of Claremont for 2014
	City of Claremont Audit Presentation 2014
	RCA Ordinance Updates
	Ord 19-14 Amend the Code of Ordinances
	RCA Ord 20-14 BA
	RCA Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Resolution Hazard Mitigation Plan
	RCA Ord 21-14 ABC Permits
	Ord 20-14 Budget Amendment
	Resolution 21-14 ABC Control
	Dashboard Report- March 2015

